
 

 

MEETING PARTICIPATION NOTICE 

 

This meeting will be conducted utilizing teleconference communications and will be recorded for live 
streaming. In accordance with the State of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, 
all City of Beaumont public meetings will be solely available via live streaming and made available on 
the City’s official YouTube webpage. Please use the following link during the meeting for live stream 
access: 

 

BeaumontCa.gov/Livestream 

 

Public comments will be accepted using the following options: 

1. Written comments will be accepted via email and will be read aloud during the corresponding 
item of the meeting. Public comments shall not exceed three (3) minutes unless otherwise 
authorized by the Commission. Comments can be submitted anytime prior to the meeting as 
well as during the meeting up until the end of the corresponding item. Please submit your 
comments to: NicoleW@BeaumontCa.gov 

2. Teleconferenced comments will be accepted by joining the Zoom webinar during the 
corresponding item of the meeting. Public comments shall not exceed three (3) minutes unless 
otherwise authorized by City Council. Please use the following link to join the webinar at the 
time of the meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89906413727 

3. Phone-in comments will be accepted by joining the Zoom webinar by calling during the 
corresponding item of the meeting. Public comments shall not exceed three (3) minutes unless 
otherwise authorized by City Council. Please use the following phone number to join the 
webinar: (888) 788 0099 (Toll Free) Webinar ID: 899 0641 3727 

 

In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, if you require special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s office using the above email or call (951) 572-3196. 
Notification 48 hours prior to a meeting will ensure the best reasonable accommodation 
arrangements. 

 

 

 

1

mailto:NicoleW@BeaumontCa.gov
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89906413727


 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

550 E 6th Street, Beaumont, CA 

Tuesday, June 09, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 AGENDA 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Planning Commission after distribution of the agenda 
packets are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s office at 550 E. 6th Street during normal business 
hours 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodations in order to participate in this meeting should telephone 
the City Clerk’s office at 951 769 8520, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a 
disability related modification or accommodation 

REGULAR SESSION 
6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Tinker, Vice Chairman Stephens, Commissioner Colindres, Commissioner 
Smith, Commissioner St. Martin 

Pledge of Allegiance: 
Approval/Adjustments to Agenda: 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure: 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA): 
Any one person may address the Committee on any matter not on this agenda. If you wish to speak, please fill out a “Public 
Comment Form” provided at the back table and give it to the Committee Chair or Secretary. There is a three (3) minute limit 
on public comments. There will be no sharing or passing of time to another person. State Law prohibits the Committee from 

discussing or taking actions brought up by your comments. 

ACTION ITEMS / PUBLIC HEARINGS / REQUESTS 
Approval of all Ordinances and Resolutions to be read by title only. 

1. Approval of Minutes 

Recommended Action: 

Approve Minutes dated May 12, 2020. 

2. Consideration of a Request for a One-Year Extension of Time for Tentative Parcel Map 

34990 (South Side of Oak Valley Parkway, East of Interstate 10)  

Recommended Action: 

2



Hold a public hearing, and 

Forward a recommendation of approval to City Council for a one-year extension 

of time for Tentative Parcel Map 34990.  

3. Consideration of the Proposed Addition of Chapter 8.55 Regulation of Shopping Carts 

to the Beaumont Municipal Code 

Recommended Action: 

Hold a public hearing and;  

Forward to City Council a recommendation of approval of Chapter 8.55 

Regulation of Shopping Carts   

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR COMMENTS  

ADJOURNMENT  

The next regular meeting of the Beaumont Planning Commission is scheduled for Tuesday, July 14, 
2020, at 6:00 p.m. or thereafter as noted on the posted Agenda at City Hall 

Beaumont City Hall – Online www.BeaumontCa.gov 
 

3

http://www.ci.beaumont.ca.us/


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
550 E 6th Street, Beaumont, CA 

Tuesday, May 12, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 MINUTES 

REGULAR SESSION 
6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER at 6:10 p.m. 

Present: Chairman Tinker, Vice Chairman Stephens, Commissioner Colindres, Commissioner 
Smith, Commissioner St. Martin 

Pledge of Allegiance 
Approval/Adjustments to Agenda: None 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure: None 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA): 
Any one person may address the Committee on any matter not on this agenda. If you wish to speak, please fill out a “Public 
Comment Form” provided at the back table and give it to the Committee Chair or Secretary. There is a three (3) minute limit 
on public comments. There will be no sharing or passing of time to another person. State Law prohibits the Committee from 
discussing or taking actions brought up by your comments. 

No speakers. 

ACTION ITEMS / PUBLIC HEARINGS / REQUESTS 
Approval of all Ordinances and Resolutions to be read by title only. 

1. Approval of Minutes 
Motion by Commissioner St. Martin 
Second by Commissioner Stephens 
To approve minutes dated March 10,2020. 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 

 
2. Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider a Request for a One-Year Extension of Time for 

Tentative Tract Map 29267 
Public Hearing opened at 6:21 p.m. 
J. Vanderwoud - Written comment, stated that he concurs with the conditions of 
approval 
Public Hearing closed at 6:21 p.m. 
Motion by Vice Chair Stephens 
Second by Commissioner Colindres 
To approve the final one-year extension for Tentative Map 29267. 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 

4

Item 1.



3. Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider a Request for a one-year Extension of Time for 
Tentative Tract Map 33680 (APN 414-142-038) 
Public Hearing opened at 6:29 p.m. 
J. Russo - Answered questions of the commission regarding the reasoning for the 
duration of idle on the project. 
Public Hearing closed at 6:30 p.m. 
Motion by Commissioner Colindres 
Second by Commissioner Smith 
To approve a one-year extension of time to for the approval of Tentative Tract Map 
33680. 
Approved by a unanimous vote. 
 

4. Consider PLAN2020-0454 for an Amendment to the San Gorgonio Village Sign Program 
Located at 1535 E. 2nd Street. 
Public Comment opened at 6:37 p.m. 
M. Bennett - Offered a phone call for any questions 
Public Comment closed at 6:38 p.m. 
Motion by Vice Chair Stephens 
Second by Commissioner Smith 
To approve PLAN2020-0454 to amend the San Gorgonio Village Sign Program as 
presented. 
Approved by unanimous vote. 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR COMMENTS  

Gave an update to future agenda items. 

ADJOURNMENT at 6:41 p.m. 
 

5

Item 1.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  Planning Commissioners 

FROM: Christina Taylor, Community Development Director  

DATE June 9, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Consideration of a Request for a One-Year Extension of Time for 

Tentative Parcel Map 34990 (South Side of Oak Valley Parkway, East 

of Interstate 10)  

APPLICANT:   Oak Valley Village, LLC 
  

Background and Analysis:  
 

The Tentative Parcel Map 34990 was approved by City Council on June 5, 2007, for a 

two-year period. Additionally, City Council approved a one-year extension until June 5, 

2010.  

 
The following California Bills also extended the map for (7) seven years in California:  

 

SB 1185 – Automatic 1-year extension (Extension until June 5, 2011),  

AB 333 – Automatic 2-year extension (Extension until June 5, 2013),  

AB 208 – Automatic 2-year extension (Extension until June 5, 2015), and  

AB 116 – Automatic 2-year extension (Extension until June 5, 2017).  

 

6

Item 2.



The City Council subsequently approved two additional one-year extensions for the map 

resulting in an expiration of June 5, 2020. 

  

The Subdivision Map Act (66463.5(c)) allows the subdivider to apply to City Council for 

up to six (6) additional one (1) year extensions. The applicant is currently requesting 

their fifth one-year extension. If approved, the map will expire on June 5, 2021, with one 

additional extension possible.  

 

The subdivision map is a “financing and conveyance map,” meaning that it cannot lead 

directly to development nor does it require any physical improvements. A plot plan 

application will be required for site development. The function of this map is to permit 

the simplified conveyance of portions of the parcel to individual users, or to separate 

project elements for financing. There are no unusual or changed circumstances which 

affect this map or the consideration of a time extension. 

 
Recommended Action: 

Hold a public hearing, and 

Forward a recommendation of approval to City Council for a one-year extension 

of time for Tentative Parcel Map 34990.  

Attachments: 

A. Tentative Parcel Map 34990 

 

7

Item 2.



A J.N3J.

>._._=._mm_u>mom_.
1

_u «ammo

Page 65 of 376
8

Item 2.



 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  Planning Commissioners 

FROM: Christina Taylor, Community Development Director 

DATE June 9, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Consideration of the Proposed Addition of Chapter 8.55 Regulation 

of Shopping Carts to the Beaumont Municipal Code 
  

Background and Analysis:  
 

Many retail establishments provide shopping carts for the convenience of customers, 

however, shopping carts removed from businesses and left abandoned on public or 

private property throughout the City constitute a public nuisance and a potential hazard 

to the health and safety of the public, cause blight in the community, results in the 

obstruction of free access to public and private sidewalks, streets, parking lots and other 

ways, interferes with pedestrian and vehicular traffic on public and private streets, and 

impedes emergency services. In order to minimize the impact of this nuisance, City staff 

collects and stores abandoned shopping carts while attempting to make contact with the 

businesses to arrange for carts to be picked up. This has proven to be a strain on staff 

time and resources.  

 

On February 4, 2020, citing the issues stated above, staff requested direction from City 

Council regarding preparing a shopping cart ordinance. Council directed staff to 

proceed with preparing an ordinance. After researching how other Inland Empire cities 

have addressed shopping cart issues, staff prepared the proposed ordinance.  

 

The ordinance contains the following sections:  

 

8.55.010 Declaration of public nuisance 

8.55.020 Definitions 

8.55.030 Cart containment and retrieval plan 

8.55.040 Plan submission and approval 

8.55.050 Penalties for failing to submit or implement a plan 

8.55.060 Appeals 

8.55.070 Unlawful acts by persons 

8.55.080 Enforcement 

9

Item 3.



8.55.090 Shopping cart abatement 

8.55.100 Procedures for abatement 

8.55.110 Fee 

 

Each section serves a purpose in addressing the City’s needs while providing a clear 

path for business operators to obtain and maintain compliance. The crux of the 

ordinance revolves around Chapter 8.55.030 Cart Containment and Retrieval Plan. The 

containment plan establishes requirements for cart identification, prevention measures 

and mandatory cart retrieval. The ordinance also provides the opportunity for 

businesses located within the same center to collaborate on a plan.  

 

A plan will be reviewed administratively by staff and either approved or denied within 30 

days. The ordinance provides for modification of a plan if site circumstances change 

and requires an annual review and recertification of a plan. Chapter 8.55.040 (B) calls 

for existing retail establishments to submit a plan for review within 60 days of adoption 

of this ordinance. Staff will be reaching out to individual businesses that fit the criteria 

and will work with them to establish compliance.  

 

In the event a business is non-compliant, the ordinance provides procedures for 

obtaining compliance. Chapters 8.55.080 – 8.55.100 establish guidelines and options 

for addressing shopping carts found outside of a center boundary. The ordinance 

provides options for notification and removal of carts that allows some flexibility for both 

the City and the owner depending on the nature of the nuisance.  

 

There is also a cost recovery component for review and approval of a shopping cart 

containment plan and for the abatement of cart nuisances. The ordinance establishes 

the use of the administrative citation process in Chapter 1.17 or Chapter 8.32 of the 

Beaumont Municipal Code. The fee for review and approval of a cart containment plan 

is being studied and will be presented at City Council for approval prior to 

implementation. By law, a fee cannot exceed the cost of staff time necessary to 

complete the work.  

      
Recommended Action: 

Hold a public hearing and;  

Forward to City Council a recommendation of approval of Chapter 8.55 

Regulation of Shopping Carts   

Attachments: 

A. Draft Ordinance  

10

Item 3.



Chapter 8.55 - REGULATION OF SHOPPING CARTS  

8.55.010- Declaration of public nuisance.  

Many retail establishments provide shopping carts for the convenience of customers while shopping on the 

premises of such businesses. However, shopping carts removed from the premises of such businesses and left 

abandoned on public or private property throughout the City constitute a public nuisance and a potential hazard to 

the health and safety of the public. The proliferation of removed and abandoned shopping carts on public and 

private property causes blight in the community, results in the obstruction of free access to public and private 

sidewalks, streets, parking lots and other ways, interferes with pedestrian and vehicular traffic on public and private 

streets, and impedes emergency services. For these reasons, such removed or abandoned shopping carts are hereby 

declared to be a public nuisance which shall be subject to abatement in the manner set forth in this division or in 

any other manner provided by law. The purpose of this division is to set forth regulations to ensure that reasonable 

measures are taken by the owners and operators of retail establishments to either prevent the removal of shopping 

carts from the premises, or provide for the prompt retrieval of removed or abandoned shopping carts, to 

complement and supplement provisions of state law, and to adopt local regulations to the extent not otherwise 

preempted by state statute.  

8.55.020 Definitions.  

Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the following words and terms as used in this Chapter shall 

have the following meanings:  

A. Abandoned means a shopping cart which is left unattended or discarded upon any public or private 

property other than the premises of the retail establishment from which the shopping cart was removed, 

regardless of whether such shopping cart was removed from the premises with or without the permission 

of the owner. For purposes of this Chapter, any shopping cart left unattended or discarded on any public 

property shall be presumed abandoned, and any shopping cart left unattended or discarded on any 

private property shall be presumed abandoned unless the owner or occupant of the private property is: (i) 

the owner, or an employee or authorized agent of the owner, entitled to possession of said shopping cart, 

(ii) an officer, employee or agent of a cart retrieval service hired by the owner to retrieve shopping carts, 

or (iii) is enforcement personnel retrieving, storing or disposing of a cart pursuant to the provisions of this 

Chapter.  

B. City means the City of Beaumont, California.  

C. Community development director means the Community Development Director of the City.  

D. Customer means any person who enters the premises of a retail establishment.  

E. Enforcement personnel means any police officer or code enforcement officer employed by the City, or 

otherwise designated by the City Manager.  

11

Item 3.



F. Laundry cart means a basket which is mounted on wheels and used in a coin-operated laundry or dry-

cleaning retail establishment by a customer or an attendant for the purpose of transporting fabrics and 

the supplies necessary to process them.  

G. Owner means any owner, manager, or operator of any retail establishment.  

H. Parking area means a parking lot or other property provided by a retail establishment for the use of 

customers of the retail establishment for parking of customer vehicles. The parking area of a retail 

establishment located in a multi-store complex or shopping center shall include the entire parking area 

used by the multi-store complex or shopping center.  

I. Parkway means that area between the sidewalks and the curb of any street, and where there is no 

sidewalk, that area between the edge of the roadway and the adjacent property line. Parkway shall also 

include any area within a roadway which is not open to vehicular travel.  

J. Planning commission means the planning commission of the City.  

K. Premises means any building, property or other area upon which any retail establishment is conducted or 

operated in the City, including the parking area provided for customers of such retail establishment.  

L. Public property means and includes, but is not limited to, all that area dedicated to public use for public 

street purposes, civic purposes, roadways, parks, parkways, alleys, sidewalks, flood control channels and 

any other public right-of-way.  

M. Removed means a shopping cart which is removed from the premises of a retail establishment by any 

person without the written permission or consent of the owner of the shopping cart.  

N. Retail establishment means any business located in the City which offers or provides shopping carts for the 

use of the customers of such business regardless of whether such business is advertised or operated as a 

retail or wholesale business, and regardless of whether such business is open to the general public, or is a 

private club or business, or is a membership store.  

O. Shopping cart or cart means a basket or platform which is mounted on wheels or a similar device generally 

used in a retail establishment by a customer for the purpose of transporting goods of any kind. The term 

'shopping cart' or 'cart' includes a laundry cart.  

8.55.030 - Cart containment and retrieval plan.  

Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, every owner who provides shopping carts to customers for use 

on the premises of any retail establishment shall develop, implement and comply with the provisions of a written 

plan approved by the City to prevent customers from removing shopping carts from the premises of such business 

and to provide for the retrieval of removed or abandoned shopping carts which have been removed from the 

premises of the retail establishment (the "plan"), and shall demonstrate compliance with all other purposes and 

provisions of this Chapter. The plan, at a minimum, shall include the following elements:  

12

Item 3.



A.  Owner information. The name of the owner; the physical address where the retail establishment is 

conducted; and the name, address, and telephone number(s) of the owner and all on-site managers, 

including any changes of such persons.  

B.  Cart inventory. The number of carts to be used or located on the premises.  

C. Signs affixed to carts. Every shopping cart made available for use by customers shall have a sign permanently 

affixed to it that identifies the owner of the cart; notifies the public that the unauthorized removal of the 

cart from the premises of the retail establishment, or the unauthorized possession of the cart, is a violation 

of state and local law, and lists a valid telephone number and address for returning the cart removed from 

the premises to the owner.  

D.  Notice to customers. Written notice shall be provided to customers, that removal of shopping carts from 

the premises is prohibited by state law. The plan shall identify the specific measures to be implemented to 

comply with this notice requirement. In addition, signs shall be placed and maintained on the premises 

near all customer entrances and exits throughout the premises, including the cart storage areas, warning 

customers that removal of shopping carts from the premises is prohibited by state law.  

E.  Prevention measures. A description of the specific measures that the business owner will implement to 

prevent removal of any cart from the business premises. Such measures may include, but are not limited 

to, electronic or other disabling devices on any cart so they cannot be removed from the business premises; 

management practices; use of courtesy clerks to accompany customers and return carts to the inside of 

the business premises; use of security personnel to prevent removal; security deposits for cart usage; and 

other proven measures acceptable to the City that are likely to prevent removal of carts from the business 

premises.  

F. New development requirements. New developments and businesses of over 5,000 square feet in area or 

having more than ten carts shall be required to install a wheel lock containment system, or similar system, 

to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director prior to the issuance of a certificate of 

occupancy for the facility.  

G. Mandatory cart retrieval operations. The procedure by which the business owner or qualified cart retrieval 

service will search, find and return carts removed from the business premises. The cart retrieval operation 

must demonstrate that carts will be actively located within one mile of the business premises and respond 

to complaints from the public or notifications from City enforcement personnel in a manner which results 

in the retrieval of carts within 24 hours of receiving the notification. If a business owner contracts with a 

cart retrieval service, the retrieval service must be a City licensed and approved service and shall not place 

limits on daily loads or days per week to retrieve carts within the City. The owner shall provide written 

authorization to all retrieval personnel, which authorization shall be carried by each such person while 

performing cart retrieval services on behalf of the owner and shall be provided to any enforcement 

personnel upon request. Each vehicle used by retrieval personnel shall bear conspicuous signs on the 

13

Item 3.



vehicle identifying either the name of the retail establishment for which such retrieval service is being 

performed or, if applicable, the name of the cart retrieval service with which the retail establishment has 

contracted for such services.  

H. Employee training. The owner of the retail establishment shall implement and maintain a periodic training 

program for its new and existing employees designed to educate such employees concerning the 

requirements of the plan and the provisions of state and local law prohibiting the unauthorized removal of 

shopping carts from the premises of the retail establishment. The plan shall expressly describe the 

employee training program.  

I. Daily cart confinement. All shopping carts located on the premises of the retail establishment (other than an 

establishment open for business 24 hours per day) shall be collected at the end of each business day by 

employees of the retail establishment and shall be collectively confined in a secure manner in the cart 

confinement area, as designated in the approved plan, until the commencement of the next business day. 

All shopping carts located on the premises of any retail establishment open for business 24 hours per day, 

other than carts then currently in use by a customer or patron, shall be collected by employees of the retail 

establishment and returned to the cart confinement area, as designated in approved plan, at least once 

per calendar day between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and midnight on each day the retail establishment is open 

for business. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to any shopping carts located within an 

enclosed building.  

J.  Collaboration with other businesses. Two or more retail establishments located within the same shopping or 

retail center or sharing a common parking area may collaborate and submit a single plan.  

K.  Additional information. Any other information deemed appropriate by the Community Development 

Director to ensure compliance with this Chapter and specified within the plan application.  

L.  Exemptions. The requirements of this Chapter shall not apply to any retail establishment which provides a 

total of less than ten (10) shopping carts for use by customers of such business.  

8.55.040 - Plan submission and approval.  

A.  New or relocated retail establishments. Unless otherwise expressly exempt hereunder, each new retail 

establishment, and any existing retail establishment relocating to a different location with the City, shall submit 

a proposed plan complying with the requirements of this Chapter to the Community Development Director, and 

obtain approval thereof by the City, prior to the issuance of a business license or certificate of occupancy, 

whichever occurs first. Each proposed plan shall be accompanied by a processing and inspection fee in an 

amount as set by resolution of the City Council. No proposed plan shall be accepted for filing and processing by 

the Community Development Director unless accompanied by the fee established by the City Council.  

B.  Existing retail establishments. Unless otherwise expressly exempt hereunder, each existing retail establishment 

shall submit a proposed plan complying with the requirements of this Chapter to the Community Development 

Director within 60 calendar days following the date of adoption of this ordinance. Each proposed plan shall be 

14

Item 3.



accompanied by a processing and inspection fee in an amount as set by resolution of the City Council. No 

proposed plan shall be accepted for filing and processing by the Community Development Director unless 

accompanied by the fee as established by the City Council.  

C. Plan review and approval.  

(1)  Upon the filing of any proposed plan pursuant to this Chapter and receipt of the required processing fee, 

the Community Development Director shall review the proposed plan and either approve, revise or deny 

the proposed plan within 30 calendar days following the receipt thereof by the Community Development 

Director.  

(2)  If approved, the plan shall be implemented no later than 30 days from the date of notification to the owner 

of the approval. An inspection by enforcement personnel shall be made of the premises to confirm 

compliance at the conclusion of the 30-day period.  

(3)  The decision of the Community Development Director shall be made in writing and notice thereof shall be 

transmitted to the owner of the retail establishment. If the proposed plan is denied, the notice of decision 

given to the owner shall state the grounds upon which the proposed plan was denied. The owner may 

appeal a decision of the Community Development Director in the time and manner provided in Chapter 

1.16.  

(4)  The Community Development Director may deny a plan based upon any of the following grounds:  

a.  Implementation of the plan would violate provisions of the building, zoning, health, safety, fire, police 

or other municipal codes, or any county, state, or federal law that substantially affects public health, 

welfare or safety;  

b.  The plan fails to include all the information required by this Chapter;  

c.  The plan is insufficient or inadequate to deter removal of carts from the owner's premises;  

d.  The plan fails to address any special or unique conditions, due to the geographical location of the 

premises, as they relate to cart retention and prevention efforts;  

e.  Implementation of the plan would violate a term or condition of another City policy or requirement of 

this Code;  

f.  The owner has knowingly made a false statement of fact, or omits a fact required to be revealed in an 

application for a plan, or in any addendum or report or other information required to be provided 

regarding the plan.  

(5)  If the plan is rejected as incomplete or inadequate, the Community Development Director shall indicate 

the areas of incompleteness or inadequacy, and the owner shall have an additional 15 days in which to 

resubmit a corrected plan.  

D.  Plan modification. At any time subsequent to the Community Development Director's approval of a plan, the 

owner may request a modification of a previously approved plan to address a change in circumstances, an 

unanticipated physical or economic impact of the plan, or a need to modify an ineffective plan. Each proposed 

15

Item 3.



amendment shall be accompanied by a processing fee in an amount as set by resolution of the City Council. No 

proposed amendment shall be accepted for filing and processing by the Community Development Director 

unless accompanied by the processing fee as established by the City Council.  

E.  Annual renewal. Every owner that is subject to this Chapter shall annually update the plan on file with the 

community development department, on or before the annual renewal of the retail establishments' business 

license. The update shall include any changes, additions or modifications to the plan; or a declaration that the 

information contained in the plan is still accurate and in full force and effect. Notwithstanding the forgoing, retail 

establishments that have installed a physical containment system, (such as wheel locks or similar electronic 

devices), that has been found to effectively deter the removal of carts from the premises and subsequently being 

abandoned on public and private property, will be subject to renewal of the plan once every three years.  

 

8.55.050 - Penalties for failing to submit or implement a plan.  

Any owner that fails to submit a plan, implement the proposed plan measures, or implement any required 

modifications to the plan by the City within the time frames specified in this division shall be subject enforcement 

proceedings and penalties pursuant to Chapter 1.16 of this Code.  

 

8.55.060 - Appeals.  

Any owner aggrieved by any adverse decision of the Community Development Director pursuant to this 

division may appeal such decision pursuant to Chapter 1.16 of this Code.  

 

8.55.070 - Unlawful acts by persons.  

It is unlawful for any person to do any of the following acts:  

A.  To remove a shopping cart from the premises of a retail establishment with the intent to temporarily or 

permanently deprive the owner of possession of the cart.  

B.  To be in possession of any shopping cart while that cart is not located on the premises of a retail 

establishment, with the intent to temporarily or permanently deprive the owner of possession of the cart.  

C.  To be in possession of any shopping cart with serial numbers removed, obliterated, or altered, with the 

intent to temporarily or permanently deprive the owner of possession of the cart.  

D.  To abandon a shopping cart at a location other than the premises of the retail establishment with the intent 

to temporarily or permanently deprive the owner of possession of the cart.  

E.  To alter, convert, or tamper with a shopping cart, or to remove any part or portion thereof or to remove, 

obliterate or alter serial numbers on a cart, or to remove a sign required by this division from a cart, with 

the intent to temporarily or permanently deprive the owner of possession of the cart.  

 

16

Item 3.



8.55.080 -Enforcement.  

A.  The provisions of this Chapter shall be administered and enforced by enforcement personnel. In the enforcement 

of this division, enforcement personnel may enter upon public property which the City owns or has a right to 

enter to examine a shopping cart or parts thereof, or to obtain information as to the identity of a shopping cart 

and remove, or cause removal of, a shopping cart, or parts thereof, declared to be a nuisance pursuant to this 

division. Enforcement personnel may enter upon public property which the City does not own or have a right to 

enter or private property to enforce the provisions of this division after obtaining permission to enter from the 

owner or occupant of the property or after obtaining a warrant from a court of competent jurisdiction 

authorizing entry onto the property.  

B.  The City may enforce violations of this division by use of administrative citations as provided in Chapter 1.17 or 

8.32. of this Code, and by any other means authorized in this Code.  

 

8.55.090 - Shopping cart abatement.  

Upon discovering the existence of a removed or abandoned shopping cart which is not properly identified as 

belonging to a particular retail establishment, or parts thereof, on public or private property within the City, 

enforcement personnel shall have the authority to cause the abatement and removal thereof in accordance with 

the procedures described in this Chapter.  

 

8.55.100 - Procedures for abatement.  

A.  Shopping carts with signs affixed. A removed or abandoned shopping cart that has a sign affixed to it may be 

impounded by enforcement personnel pursuant to either of the following procedures.  

(1)  Upon the discovery of a removed or abandoned cart, enforcement personnel give the owner of the cart 

notice of the cart's discovery and location. If three days after such notice is given the cart has not been 

retrieved by the owner or his or her agent, enforcement personnel may impound the cart. The owner of 

any cart impounded pursuant to this subsection (a)(1) shall be subject to any applicable fee or fine imposed 

pursuant to subdivision (e) or (f). A cart impounded pursuant to this subsection (a)(1) that is not reclaimed 

within 30 days of the owner's receipt of the notice provided for herein shall be disposed of pursuant to 

subsection (g).  

(2)  Upon the discovery of a removed or abandoned cart, enforcement personnel shall immediately impound 

the cart and give the owner of the cart actual notice that the cart has been impounded within 24 hours of 

the impoundment. Any shopping cart impounded pursuant to this subsection (a)(2) that is reclaimed within 

three business days following the date of actual notice to the owner shall be released and surrendered to 

the owner or his or her agent at no charge whatsoever, including the waiver of any impound and storage 

fees or fines that would otherwise be applicable pursuant to subdivision (e) or (f) of this section. Any cart 

reclaimed within the three business day period shall not be deemed an occurrence for the purposes of 

17

Item 3.



subdivision (f) of this section. The owner of any cart impounded pursuant to this subsection (a)(2) that is 

not reclaimed within three business days following the date of actual notice to the owner shall be subject 

to any applicable fee or fine imposed pursuant to subdivision (e) or (f) commencing on the fourth business 

day following the date of the notice. Any cart not reclaimed within 30 days of the actual notice provided to 

the owner of the cart shall be disposed of pursuant to subsection (g).  

B. Shopping carts without signs affixed. A removed or abandoned shopping cart that does not have a sign affixed to 

it identifying the owner may be impounded immediately upon its discovery by enforcement personnel. Carts 

impounded pursuant to this subsection (b) may be disposed of immediately.  

C. Emergency removal. Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section, a removed or abandoned shopping cart with 

a sign affixed to it identifying the owner may be impounded immediately if the location of the shopping cart will 

impede emergency services. Enforcement personnel shall give the owner or his or her authorized agent notice 

of the impoundment within three business days of the impoundment. The owner of any cart impounded 

pursuant to this subsection (c) shall be subject to any applicable fee or fine imposed pursuant to subdivision (e) 

or (f). Any cart not reclaimed within 30 days of the date the owner of the cart receives notice of its impoundment 

shall be disposed of pursuant to subsection (g).  

D. Impound location. Any shopping cart that is impounded by the enforcement personnel pursuant to this division 

shall be held at a location that is reasonably convenient to the owner of the shopping cart and open for business 

at least six hours of each business day. The City's corporate yard is centrally located within the City and open at 

least six hours each business day, and the City finds that holding impounded shopping carts at the corporate 

yard satisfies the requirements of this subsection.  

E.  Recovery of costs. The City Council may provide by resolution for the recovery of the actual cost in providing the 

service of impounding shopping carts.  

F. Fines. In addition to the fee for the service of impounding shopping carts, a fine in the amount of $50.00 is hereby 

imposed upon each owner of a shopping cart for each occurrence in excess of three during a specified six-month 

period for failure to retrieve shopping carts in accordance with this section. An occurrence includes all shopping 

carts impounded in accordance with this Chapter in a one-day period. This subsection does not apply to and 

does not limit or prohibit any other fee, fine or penalty that the City may charge for violation of the other 

provisions of this Chapter.  

G. Disposal of carts. Any shopping cart not reclaimed from the City within 30 days of receipt of a notice of violation 

by the owner of the shopping cart may be sold or otherwise disposed of by the City as determined by City in its 

sole and absolute discretion.  

H. Actual notice. A notice, as required by this division, may be served personally upon the designated owner 

identified in a sign permanently affixed to a shopping cart or by mail as prescribed by California Code of Civil 

Procedure Section 1013.  

 

18

Item 3.



 

8.55.110 - Fee.  

The City Council is authorized to set by resolution processing and inspection fees for the submissions required 

by this Chapter. The fees set by the resolution of the City Council pursuant to this section shall not exceed the 

amount reasonably necessary for the City to perform the services provided.  

19

Item 3.


	Top
	1.	PC Minutes 05.12.2020
	PC 05.12.2020 Minutes

	2.	Consideration of a Request for a One-Year Extension of Time for Tentative Parcel Map 34990
	Staff Report - TPM34990
	TPM34990

	3.	Consideration of the Proposed Addition of Chapter 8.55 Regulation of Shopping Carts to the Beaumont Municipal Code
	Staff Report - Shopping Cart Ord
	DRAFT Ord Chapter 8.55 Regulation of Shopping Carts

	Bottom

